DEPOMED INC Form S-3 May 25, 2012 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 25, 2012

Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

DEPOMED, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

California
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

94-3229046

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1360 O Brien Drive, Menlo Park, California 94025 (650) 462-5900

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of Registrant s principal executive offices)

James A. Schoeneck

President and Chief Executive Officer

1360 O Brien Drive, Menlo Park, California 94025

	(650) 462-5900
(Name, address, including zip code	e, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)
	Copies to:
Kyle Guse, Esq. K. Amar Murugan, Esq. Baker Botts L.L.P. 1001 Page Mill Road, Building One Palo Alto, California 94304	Matthew M. Gosling, Esq. Senior Vice President & General Counsel Depomed, Inc. 1360 O Brien Drive Menlo Park, California 94025
	of commencement of proposed sale to the public: acticable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.
If the only securities being registered on this Form are be following box. o	ing offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the
	to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securition with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. x
	a offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, please check the ement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o
-	to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act of 1933, check the following box and list the r effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a small reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o

Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company o

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of each class of securities to be registered

Proposed maximum aggregate offering price

Amount of registration fee

Common Stock, no par value (1) Preferred Stock, no par value **Debt Securities** Warrants

\$

100,000,000(2)

0(3)

Depositary Shares (1)

This registration statement also relates to rights to purchase 1/1000th of a share of Series RP Preferred Stock, no par value, which are attached to all shares of the registrant s common stock pursuant to the registrant s Rights Agreement dated as of April 21, 2005. Until the occurrence of events described in the Rights Agreement, the rights are not exercisable, are evidenced by the common stock certificates, and are transferable only with such common stock.

(2)

There is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of shares of common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants and depositary shares that may be issued by the registrant at various times and at indeterminate prices, with a total offering price not to exceed \$100,000,000. Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the Act), as amended, the shares being registered hereunder include such indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock as may be issuable by the registrant with respect to the shares being registered hereunder as a result of stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions. Pursuant to Rule 457(i) under the Act, the shares being registered hereunder include such indeterminate number of shares of common stock and preferred stock as may be issuable by the registrant upon conversion or exchange of any preferred stock, depositary shares, warrants or debt securities issued under this registration statement. There is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of depositary shares of the registrant as may be sold from time to time by the registrant. Such depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued pursuant to a deposit agreement. Pursuant to Rule 457(i) under the Act, the depositary shares being registered hereunder include such indeterminate number of depositary shares as may be issuable by the registrant upon conversion or exchange of any preferred stock, depositary shares, warrants or debt securities issued by the registrant under this registration statement. There is being registered hereunder an indeterminate principal amount of debt securities of the registrant as may be sold from time to time by the registrant. If any debt securities are issued at an original issue discount, then the offering price shall be in such greater principal amount at maturity as shall result in aggregate gross proceeds to the registrant not to exceed \$100,000,000, less the gross proceeds attributable to any securities previously issued pursuant to this registration statement. Pursuant to Rule 457(i) under the Act, the debt securities being registered hereunder include such indeterminate principal amount of debt securities as may be issuable by the registrant upon

conversion or exchange of any warrants issued under this registration statement. There is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of warrants to purchase common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares or debt securities of one or more series. Pursuant to Rule 457(i) under the Act, the warrants being registered hereunder include such indeterminate number of warrants as may be issuable by the registrant upon conversion or exchange of any preferred stock or debt securities issued by the registrant under this registration statement. In no event will the aggregate offering price of all securities issued by the registrant from time to time pursuant to this registration statement exceed \$100,000,000, excluding accrued interest, if any, on any debt securities issued under this registration statement. The securities registered by the registrant hereunder may be sold separately or with other securities registered hereunder.

(3)

Calculated pursuant to Rule 457(o) of the Act, as amended. Pursuant to Rule 415(a)(6) under the Act, as amended, the securities registered pursuant to this Registration Statement are the unsold securities previously registered on the registrant is Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-156539) initially filed by the registrant on December 31, 2008, or the Prior Registration Statement. The Prior Registration Statement registered securities for a maximum offering price of \$100,000,000, none of which were sold under the Prior Registration Statement. In connection with the registration of such unsold securities on the Prior Registration Statement, the Registrant paid filing fees of \$9,346, which filing fees will continue to be applied to such unsold securities included in this Registration Statement. Pursuant to Rule 415(a)(6) under the Act, the offering of unsold securities under the Prior Registration Statement will be deemed terminated as of the date of effectiveness of this Registration Statement.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its Effective Date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

Table of Contents

EXPLANATORY NOTE

Depomed, Inc. previously filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-156539), or the Prior Registration Statement, to register up to \$100,000,000 of its securities. The Prior Registration Statement was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2009. Upon effectiveness of this Registration Statement, it is intended that this Registration Statement will replace the Prior Registration Statement and any offering of unsold securities under the Prior Registration Statement will be terminated.

Table of Contents

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted

Subject to completion, dated May 25, 2012

PROSPECTUS

\$100,000,000

COMMON STOCK PREFERRED STOCK DEBT SECURITIES WARRANTS DEPOSITARY SHARES

We may offer and sell from time to time in one or more offerings up to \$100,000,000 in the aggregate of:

- shares of our common stock and shares of our preferred stock (in one or more series);
- our secured or unsecured debt securities, in one or more series (which may be either senior or subordinated debt securities);
- warrants to purchase our common stock or our preferred stock or our debt securities;
- fractional shares of preferred stock, which will be represented by depositary shares; or
- any combination of the foregoing.

We will provide the specific terms of the securities that we may offer in supplements to this prospectus which may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement carefully before you

invest. THIS PROSPECTUS MAY NOT BE USED TO OFFER OR SELL ANY SECURITIES UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY A PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT.

Investing in our securities involves	a high degree	of risk. See the section entitled	Risk Factors	on Page 2.

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol DEPO. On May 24, 2012, the last reported sale price for our common stock was \$ per share. The applicable prospectus supplement will contain information, where applicable, as to any other listing on the Nasdaq Global Market or any securities exchange of the securities covered by the prospectus supplement.

The securities offered by this prospectus or any prospectus supplement may be offered directly to investors or to or through underwriters, dealers or other agents. If any underwriters or dealers are involved in the sale of any securities offered by this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, their names, and any applicable purchase price, fee, commission or discount arrangement between or among them, will be set forth, or will be calculable from the information set forth, in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is , 2012

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

About this Prospectus	1
About Depomed	1
Risk Factors	2
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	2
Use of Proceeds	4
Selected Financial Data	5
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preference Dividends	5
Description of Capital Stock	6
Description of Debt Securities	8
Description of Warrants	11
Description of Depositary Shares	12
Plan of Distribution	13
Legal Matters	14
<u>Experts</u>	14
Where You Can Find More Information	14
incorporation of Certain Information by Reference	15

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have subsequently changed.

Table of Contents

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may offer and sell any combination of securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we use this prospectus to offer securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. To the extent that any statement that we make in a prospectus supplement is inconsistent with statements made in this prospectus, the statements made in this prospectus will be deemed modified or superseded by those made in a prospectus supplement. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading. Where You Can Find More Information.

Unless the context requires otherwise, in this prospectus the terms Depomed, we, us and our refer to Depomed, Inc., a California corporation.

ABOUT DEPOMED

Depomed is a specialty pharmaceutical company initially focused on neurology, pain and other diseases of the central nervous system. The centerpiece of our specialty pharmaceutical business is Gralise® (gabapentin), a once-daily product for the management of postherpetic neuralgia that we launched and made commercially available in October 2011. We also have a portfolio of royalty and milestone producing assets based on our proprietary drug delivery technologies. The cornerstone of that portion of our business is Glumetza®, a once-daily treatment for adults with type 2 diabetes that we licensed to, and is currently being commercialized by Santarus, Inc., or Santarus, in the United States. Serada® is our proprietary extended release formulation of gabapentin in development for the treatment of menopausal hot flashes. We have completed three Phase 3 clinical trials evaluating Serada for menopausal hot flashes and intend to file a New Drug Application, or NDA, with the United States Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, in the second half of 2012. We have a number of other license and development arrangements associated with our Acuform gastroretentive drug delivery technology. In addition, we have two product candidates in clinical development, DM-1992 for Parkinson s disease and Serada for menopausal hot flashes.

We are seeking to develop and commercialize a number of pharmaceutical products for neurology, pain and other central nervous system conditions and diseases that can be promoted together effectively. We are actively seeking to expand our product portfolio through in-licensing, acquiring or obtaining co-promotion rights to commercially available products or late-stage product candidates that could be marketed and sold through our existing sales and marketing capability.

We also seek to realize value from our drug delivery technology and related intellectual property through licensing and collaborative development partnerships with other companies. Our license agreement with Santarus which we restructured in August 2011, our license and development arrangements with Covidien, Janssen Pharmaceutica N.V., or Janssen, Boehringer Ingelheim International GMBH, or Boehringer Ingelheim, and Ironwood Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or Ironwood, and our license agreement with Merck & Co., Inc., or Merck, are examples of this element of our strategy.

We are a California corporation and our principal executive offices are located at 1360 O Brien Drive, Menlo Park, California 94025, and our telephone number is (650) 462-5900. Our website address is www.depomed.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated into, and does not constitute a part of this prospectus or any prospectus supplement.

Depomed®, Gralise®, Serada®, and Acuform® are registered trademarks of Depomed. Glumetza® is a registered trademark of Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, Inc. exclusively licensed in the United States to Depomed. All other trademarks, service marks or trade names appearing in this prospectus are the property of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the specific risks set forth under Risk Factors in the applicable prospectus supplement, under Risk Factors under Item 1A of Part I of our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and under Risk Factors under Item 1A of Part II of our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus, before making an investment decision.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus, any prospectus supplement, and the documents incorporated by reference herein include forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as believe, anticipate, expect, intend, plan, other similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not necessarily limited to, those relating to:

will,

- the commercial success and market acceptance of Gralise (gabapentin), our once-daily product for the management of postherpetic neuralgia;
- the commercial success of Glumetza (metformin hydrochloride extended-release tablets) in the United States, and the efforts of our Glumetza commercial partner, Santarus;
- the results of our ongoing litigation against filers of abbreviated New Drug Applications, each, an ANDA, to market generic Gralise in the United States:
- the outcome of our ongoing litigation against filers of ANDAs to market generic Glumetza in the United States;
- any patent infringement or other litigation that has been or may be instituted related to Gralise, Glumetza or any other of our product candidates under the Hatch-Waxman Act;
- our and our collaborative partners compliance or non-compliance with legal and regulatory requirements related to the promotion of pharmaceutical products in the United States;

• our plans to in-license, acquire or co-promote other products;
• discussions with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration regarding the results of Breeze 3, our Phase 3 trial evaluating Serada for menopausal hot flashes that did not meet all primary endpoints;
• the results and timing of our clinical trials;
• the results of our research and development efforts;
• submission, acceptance and approval of regulatory filings;
• our need for, and ability to raise, additional capital;
• our collaborative partners compliance or non-compliance with obligations under our collaboration agreements; and
• our plans to develop other product candidates.
You should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements because the matters they describe are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other unpredictable factors, many of which are beyond our control. Our forward-looking statements are based on the information currently available to us and speak only as of the date on the cover of this prospectus, the date of any prospectus supplement, or, in the case of forward-looking statements incorporated by reference, as of the date of the filing that includes the statement. New risks and uncertainties arise from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these matters or how they may affect us. Over time, our actual results, performance or achievements will likely differ from the anticipated results,
2

Table of Contents

performance or achievements that are expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements, and such difference might be significant and materially adverse to our securityholders. We have no duty to, and do not intend to, update or revise the forward-looking statements in this prospectus after the date of this prospectus or the date of any prospectus supplement, even if subsequent events cause us to become aware of new risks or cause our expectations to change regarding the forward-looking matters discussed in this prospectus. We have identified some of the important factors that could cause future events to differ from our current expectations and they are described in this prospectus and supplements to this prospectus under Risk Factors as well as in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in any Form 8-K filed subsequent to our most recent quarterly report on Form 10-Q, all of which you should review carefully. Please consider our forward-looking statements in light of those risks as you read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement.

The Securities that We May Offer

We may offer shares of our common stock and preferred stock, various series of debt securities, warrants and depositary shares to purchase any of such securities with a total value of up to \$100,000,000 from time to time under this prospectus at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions at the time of offering. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we offer a type or series of securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will describe the specific amounts, prices and other important terms of the securities, including, to the extent applicable:

- designation or classification;
- aggregate principal amount or aggregate offering price;
- maturity;
- original issue discount, if any;
- rates and times of payment of interest, dividends or other payments, if any;
- redemption, conversion, exchange, settlement or sinking fund terms, if any;
- conversion, exchange or settlement prices or rates, if any, and, if applicable, any provisions for changes to or adjustments in the conversion, exchange or settlement prices or rates and in the securities or other property receivable upon conversion, exchange or settlement;
- ranking;
- restrictive covenants, if any;
- voting or other rights, if any; and
- important federal income tax considerations.

We may sell the securities directly to or through underwriters, dealers or agents. We, and our underwriters or agents, reserve the right to accept or reject all or part of any proposed purchase of securities. If we do offer securities through underwriters or agents, we will include in the applicable prospectus supplement:

- the names of those underwriters or agents;
- applicable fees, discounts and commissions to be paid to them;
- details regarding over-allotment options, if any; and
- the net proceeds to us.

Common Stock. We may issue shares of our common stock from time to. Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share for the election of directors and on all other matters that require shareholder approval. Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding preferred stock, in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in the assets remaining after payment of liabilities and the liquidation preferences of any outstanding preferred stock. Our common stock does not carry any preemptive rights enabling a holder to subscribe for, or receive shares of, any class of our common stock or any other securities convertible into shares of any class of our common stock, or any redemption rights.

Preferred Stock. We may issue shares of our preferred stock from time to time, in one or more series. Under our amended and restated articles of incorporation, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by shareholders, to designate up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications and restrictions granted to or imposed upon the preferred stock, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, liquidation preference and sinking fund terms, any or all of which may be greater than the rights of the common stock. To date, our board of directors has designated 25,000 of the 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock as Series A Preferred Stock and 100,000 of the 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock as Series RP Preferred Stock, which series is described in greater detail in this prospectus under Description of Capital Stock Series RP Preferred Stock Purchase Rights.

Table of Contents

We will fix the rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications and restrictions of the preferred stock of each series that we sell under this prospectus and applicable prospectus supplements in the certificate of determination relating to that series. We will incorporate by reference into the registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part the form of any certificate of determination that describes the terms of the series of preferred stock we are offering before the issuance of the related series of preferred stock. We urge you to read the prospectus supplement related to the series of preferred stock being offered, as well as the complete certificate of determination that contains the terms of the applicable series of preferred stock.

Debt Securities. We may issue debt securities from time to time, in one or more series, as either senior or subordinated debt or as senior or subordinated convertible debt. The senior debt securities will rank equally with any other unsubordinated debt that we may have and may be secured or unsecured. The subordinated debt securities will be subordinate and junior in right of payment, to the extent and in the manner described in the instrument governing the debt, to all or some portion of our indebtedness. Any convertible debt securities that we issue will be convertible into or exchangeable for our common stock or other securities of ours. Conversion may be mandatory or at your option and would be at prescribed conversion rates.

The debt securities will be issued under one or more documents called indentures, which are contracts between us and a trustee for the holders of the debt securities. In this prospectus, we have summarized certain general features of the debt securities. We urge you, however, to read the prospectus supplement related to the series of debt securities being offered, as well as the complete indenture that contains the terms of the debt securities. Indentures have been filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, and supplemental indentures and forms of debt securities containing the terms of debt securities being offered will be incorporated by reference into the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part from reports we file with the SEC.

Warrants. We may issue warrants for the purchase of common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and/or debt securities in one or more series, from time to time. We may issue warrants independently or together with common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and/or debt securities, and the warrants may be attached to or separate from those securities.

The warrants will be evidenced by warrant certificates issued under one or more warrant agreements, which are contracts between us and an agent for the holders of the warrants. In this prospectus, we have summarized certain general features of the warrants. We urge you, however, to read the prospectus supplement related to the series of warrants being offered, as well as the complete warrant agreement and warrant certificate that contain the terms of the warrants. Any warrant agreement and warrant certificate containing the terms of the warrants being offered will be incorporated by reference into the registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part from reports we file with the SEC.

Depositary Shares. We may elect to offer fractional shares of preferred stock rather than full shares of preferred stock and, in that event, will issue receipts for depositary shares. Each of these depositary shares will represent a fraction, which will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, of a share of the applicable series of preferred stock.

Any depositary shares that we sell under this prospectus will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued under a deposit agreement between us and a depositary with whom we deposit the shares of the applicable series of preferred stock that underlie the depositary shares that are sold. We urge you to read the prospectus supplement related to any depositary shares being sold, as well as the complete deposit agreement and depositary receipt. A complete deposit agreement, including a form of depositary receipt, and supplements to those forms containing the terms of any depositary shares that we sell under this prospectus will be incorporated by reference into the registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part from reports we file with the SEC.

One or more prospectus supplements also may add, update or change information contained in this prospectus or in documents we have incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

This prospectus may not be used to offer or sell any securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will retain broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds from the sale of our securities offered pursuant to this prospectus. Except as described in any applicable prospectus supplement, we currently anticipate using the net proceeds from the sale of our securities hereby for general corporate purposes, which may include, without limitation, working capital, capital expenditures, marketing and sales expenses related to products developed by us and/or licensed from other companies, clinical trials, research and development expenses, and general and administrative expenses. We may also use a portion of the net proceeds to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, products and technologies. Although we have no specific arrangements with respect to acquisitions, we evaluate acquisition opportunities and engage in related discussions with other companies from time to time. The amounts and timing of the expenditures may vary significantly depending on numerous factors, such as the progress of our research and development efforts, technological advances and the competitive environment for our products.

Pending the use of the net proceeds, we intend to invest the net proceeds in short-term, interest-bearing, investment-grade securities.

Table of Contents

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our historical selected financial information. Effective January 1, 2012, we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board s (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income, as amended by ASU 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. These updates revise the manner in which entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements. The following selected financial information revises historical information to illustrate the new presentation required by this pronouncement for the periods presented.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited, in thousands)

	Dec	cember 31, 2009	ar Ended cember 31, 2010	December 31, 2011		
Net income (loss)	\$	(22,008)	\$ 3,896	\$	70,726	
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale						
securities		(118)	36		(82)	
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(22,126)	\$ 3,932	\$	70,644	

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERENCE DIVIDENDS

The following summary is qualified by the more detailed information appearing in the computation table found in Exhibit 12.1 to the registration statement of which this prospectus is part and the historical financial statements, including the notes to those financial statements, incorporated by reference in this prospectus. Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges and ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preference dividends (as applicable) for each of the years ended December 31, 2007 to 2011 and the three months ended March 31, 2012 was as follows:

	2	2007	2008	ed December 3 2009 ls, except for ra	2010	:	2011	 ree Months Ended Iarch 31, 2012
Ratio of earnings to fixed				_				
charges(1)		129.4			4.6		107.3	
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preference								
dividends(1)		46.8			4.6		107.3	
Earnings (Deficiency of Earnings) available to cover combined fixed charges and								
preference dividends	\$	49,126	\$ (15,842)	\$ (22,023)	\$ 3,892	\$	71,122	\$ (8,795)

(1) For purposes of computing these ratios of earnings to fixed charges and earnings to combined fixed charges and preference dividends, fixed charges consist of interest expense and an estimated interest component of rent, and combined fixed charges and preference dividends consist of fixed charges and deemed dividends on our Series A Preferred Stock and related warrant (none of which were issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010). Earnings consist of net income (loss) applicable to common stock shareholders before income taxes plus combined fixed charges and preference dividends, and were insufficient to cover combined fixed charges and preference dividends (as applicable) for each of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009, and for the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description is a summary of the material terms of our common stock, our preferred stock and our rights agreement. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. Accordingly, you should read carefully the more detailed provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation, our bylaws, as amended, and our rights agreement, each of which has been filed with the SEC, as well as applicable California law.

General

As of March 31, 2012, there were 55,640,181 outstanding shares of common stock. The number of outstanding shares of common stock does not include:

- options to purchase approximately 5,739,301 shares of common stock at a weighted-average exercise price of \$5.55 outstanding as of March 31, 2012;
- 183,240 shares of common stock issuable upon the vesting of outstanding restricted stock unit awards as of March 31, 2012;
- approximately 315,398 additional shares of common stock reserved for issuance under our equity incentive plans as of March 31, 2012; and
- an aggregate of 139,043 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of March 31, 2012.

Common Stock

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by our shareholders. Subject to the preferences that may be applicable to any future shares of preferred stock outstanding, the holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available therefor. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, the holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to the prior liquidation rights of any future shares of preferred stock outstanding. The holders of common stock have no preemptive, redemption, conversion, sinking fund or other subscription rights. The outstanding shares of common stock are, and the shares offered by us in this offering will be, when issued and paid for, fully paid and nonassessable. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of shares of preferred stock which we may designate and issue in the future.

Preferred Stock

We have 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized, 25,000 of which are designated as Series A Preferred Stock and 100,000 of which are designated Series RP Preferred Stock, which series is described in greater detail in this prospectus under the heading Description of Capital Stock - Series RP Preferred Stock Purchase Rights below. Our board of directors has the authority to provide for the issuance of the preferred stock in one or more series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to California corporate law, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof. Our board of directors, without shareholder approval, can issue preferred stock with voting and conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of common stock, and the issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of us.

As of the date of this prospectus, there are no shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding and no shares of Series RP Preferred Stock outstanding.

Series RP Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

On April 21, 2005, we adopted a shareholder rights plan, or Rights Plan. The description and terms of the rights issuable under the Rights Plan are set forth in a Rights Agreement between us and Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent, dated as of April 21, 2005. Under the Rights Plan, we distributed one Series RP Preferred Share purchase right for each share of common stock outstanding at the close of business on May 5, 2005. If a person or group acquires 20% or more of our common stock in a transaction not pre-approved by our board of directors, each right will entitle its holder, other than the acquirer, to buy our common stock at 50% of its market value for the right s then current exercise price (initially \$35.00). In addition, if an unapproved party acquires more than 20% of our common stock, and we are later acquired by the unapproved party or in a transaction in which all of our shareholders are not treated alike, shareholders with unexercised rights, other than the unapproved party, will be entitled to purchase common stock of the merger party or asset buyer with a value of twice the exercise price of the rights. Each right also becomes exercisable for one one-thousandth of a share of our Series RP Preferred Stock at the right s then current exercise price 10

Table of Contents

days after an unapproved third party makes, or announces an intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer that, if completed, would result in the unapproved party acquiring 20% or more of our common stock. We may redeem the rights for a nominal amount before an event that causes the rights to become exercisable.

Until a right is exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a shareholder of us, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends. While the distribution of the rights will not be taxable to shareholders of us, shareholders may, depending upon the circumstances, recognize taxable income should the Rights become exercisable or upon the occurrence of certain events thereafter. As long as the rights are attached to the shares of common stock, we will issue one right with each new share of common stock so that all such shares will have attached rights. The rights will expire on April 21, 2015.

The Rights Agreement, specifying the terms of the rights and the Certificate of Determination for Series RP Preferred Stock, is attached as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 22, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference. The foregoing descriptions of the Rights and of the Series RP Preferred Stock are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Rights Agreement and the exhibits thereto.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Rights Agreement.

The rights described above under the heading Description of Capital Stock - Series RP Preferred Stock Purchase Rights above have certain anti-takeover effects. The rights will cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire a significant interest in us on terms not approved by our board of directors.

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

Preferred Stock. Under our amended and restated articles of incorporation, our board of directors has the power to authorize the issuance of up to 5,000,000, shares of preferred stock, 4,875,000 of which remain undesignated, and to determine the price, rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without further vote or action by the shareholders. The issuance of preferred stock may:

- delay, defer or prevent a change in control;
- discourage bids for the common stock at a premium over the market price of our common stock;
- adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock; and

• discourage acquisition proposals or tender offers for our shares and, as a consequence, inhibit fluctuations in the market price of our shares that could result from actual or rumored takeover attempts.
Special Meeting Requirements. Our bylaws provide that special meetings of shareholders may be called at the request of our board of directors, the chairman of our board of directors, the President, or the holder of shares entitled to cast not less than one-tenth of the votes at the meeting.
Advance Notice Requirement. Shareholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting of our shareholders must comply with advance notice procedures. These advance notice procedures require timely notice and apply in several situations, including shareholder proposals relating to the nominations of persons for election to our board of directors. Generally, to be timely, notice must be received at our principal executive offices not less than 120 or more than 150 days prior to the first anniversary of the date on which the proxy materials for the preceding year s annual meeting of shareholders were mailed.
<i>Indemnification</i> . Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and our bylaws, as amended, provide that we will indemnify officers and directors against losses as they incur in investigations and legal proceedings resulting from their services to us, which may include service in connection with takeover defense measures.
The above provisions may deter a hostile takeover or delay a change in control or management of us.
Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company. The transfer and the transfer agent and registrar for any series of preferred stock issued pursuant to this offering will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.
Listing Information
Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market and is traded under the symbol DEPO .
7

Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

The following description, together with the additional information we include in any applicable prospectus supplement, is only a summary of the material terms and provisions of the debt securities that we may offer under this prospectus. While the terms we have summarized below may generally apply to any debt securities we may offer under this prospectus, we will describe the particular terms of any debt securities that we may offer in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement. The terms of any debt securities we offer under a prospectus supplement may differ from the terms we describe below.

We may issue the senior notes under the senior indenture which we will enter into with the trustee named in the senior indenture. We may issue the subordinated notes under the subordinated indenture which we will enter into with the trustee named in the subordinated indenture. We have filed forms of these documents as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. We use the term indentures to refer to both the senior indenture and the subordinated indenture. The indentures will be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. We use the term debenture trustee to refer to either the senior trustee or the subordinated trustee, as applicable.

The following summaries of material provisions of the senior notes, the subordinated notes and the indentures are subject to, and qualified in their entirety by reference to, all the provisions of the indenture applicable to a particular series of debt securities. We urge you to read the applicable prospectus supplements related to the debt securities that we sell under this prospectus, as well as the complete indentures that contain the terms of the debt securities. Except as we may otherwise indicate, the terms of the senior indenture and the subordinated indenture are identical.

General

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms relating to a series of debt securities, including, to the extent applicable:

- the title;
- the principal amount being offered, and, if a series, the total amount authorized and the total amount outstanding;
- any limit on the amount that may be issued;
- whether or not we will issue the series of debt securities in global form and, if so, the terms and who the depositary will be;
- the maturity date;
- the principal amount due at maturity, and whether the debt securities will be issued with any original issue discount;
- the annual interest rate, which may be fixed or variable, or the method for determining the rate, the date interest will begin to accrue, the dates interest will be payable and the regular record dates for interest payment dates or the method for determining such dates;

- whether or not the debt securities will be secured or unsecured, and the terms of any secured debt;
- the terms of the subordination of any series of subordinated debt;
- the place where payments will be payable;
- restrictions on transfer, sale or other assignment, if any;
- our right, if any, to defer payment of interest and the maximum length of any such deferral period;
- the date, if any, after which, the conditions upon which, and the price at which we may, at our option, redeem the series of debt securities pursuant to any optional or provisional redemption provisions, and any other applicable terms of those redemption provisions;
- whether the indenture will restrict our ability and/or the ability of our subsidiaries to operate our business or that of any subsidiary;
- whether the indenture will restrict our ability and/or the ability of our subsidiaries to incur additional debt or issue additional debt or other securities;
- whether the indenture restricts our ability to merge or consolidate, or sell, convey, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets;

8

Table of Contents

- whether the indenture will require us to maintain any interest coverage, fixed charge, cash flow-based, asset-based or other financial ratios;
- a discussion of any material or special United States federal income tax considerations applicable to the debt securities;
- information describing any book-entry features;
- the denominations in which we will issue the series of debt securities, if other than denominations of \$1,000 and any integral multiple thereof;
- if other than U.S. dollars, the currency in which the series of debt securities will be denominated; and
- any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of, or restrictions on, the debt securities, including any events of default that are in addition to those described in this prospectus or any covenants provided with respect to the debt securities that are in addition to those described above, and any terms which may be required by us or advisable under applicable laws or regulations or advisable in connection with the marketing of the debt securities.

Conversion or Exchange Rights

We will set forth in the prospectus supplement the terms on which a series of debt securities may be convertible into or exchangeable for common stock or other securities of ours or a third party, including the conversion or exchange rate, as applicable, or how it will be calculated, and the applicable conversion or exchange period. We will include provisions as to whether conversion or exchange is mandatory, at the option of the holder or at our option. We may include provisions pursuant to which the number of our securities or the securities of a third party that the holders of the series of debt securities receive upon conversion or exchange would, under the circumstances described in those provisions, be subject to adjustment, or pursuant to which those holders would, under those circumstances, receive other property upon conversion or exchange, for example in the event of our merger or consolidation with another entity.

Consolidation, Merger or Sale

The indentures in the forms initially filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part do not contain any covenant which restricts our ability to merge or consolidate, or sell, convey, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets. However, any successor of ours or acquiror of such assets must assume all of our obligations under the indentures and the debt securities.

If the debt securities are convertible for our other securities, the person with whom we consolidate or merge or to whom we sell all of our property must make provisions for the conversion of the debt securities into securities which the holders of the debt securities would have received if they had converted the debt securities before the consolidation, merger or sale.

Events of Default Under the Indenture and Modification of Indenture; Waiver

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement what events are events of default under the indentures with respect to any series of debt securities that we may issue, including:

- if we fail to pay interest when due and payable and our failure continues for 90 days and the time for payment has not been extended or deferred;
- if we fail to pay the principal, or premium, if any, when due and payable and the time for payment has not been extended or delayed;
- if we fail to observe or perform any other covenant contained in the debt securities or the indentures, other than a covenant specifically relating to another series of debt securities, and our failure continues for 90 days after we receive notice from the debenture trustee or holders of a certain amount in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of the applicable series; and
- if specified events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization occur.

The indentures in the forms initially filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part provide that the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of an affected series may waive any default or event of default with respect to the series and its consequences, except defaults or events of default regarding payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest, unless we have cured the default or event of default in accordance with the indenture.

Table of Contents

We will also describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the circumstances under which we and the debenture trustee may change an indenture without the consent of any holders with respect to specific matters.

Modification of Indenture; Waiver

We and the debenture trustee may change an indenture without the consent of any holders with respect to specific matters, including:

- to fix any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in the indenture;
- to comply with the provisions described above under Consolidation, Merger or Sale;
- to comply with any requirements of the SEC in connection with the qualification of any indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939;
- to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment hereunder by a successor trustee;
- to provide for uncertificated debt securities and to make all appropriate changes for such purpose;
- to add to, delete from, or revise the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the authorized amount, terms or purposes of issuance, authorization and delivery of debt securities of any series;
- to add to our covenants such new covenants, restrictions, conditions or provisions for the protection of the holders, to make the occurrence, or the occurrence and the continuance, of a default in any such additional covenants, restrictions, conditions or provisions an event of default, or to surrender any of our rights or powers under the indenture; or
- to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder of debt securities of any series.

In addition, under the indentures, the rights of holders of a series of debt securities may be changed by us and the debenture trustee with the written consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each series that is affected.

Discharge

Each indenture provides that we can elect to be discharged from our obligations with respect to one or more series of debt securities, except for certain obligations, including:

•	register the transfer or exchange of debt securities of the series;
•	replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities of the series;
•	hold monies for payment in trust;
•	compensate and indemnify the debenture trustee; and
•	appoint any successor trustee.
	exercise our rights to be discharged, we must deposit with the debenture trustee money or government obligations sufficient to pay all al of, any premium, if any, and interest on, the debt securities of the series on the dates payments are due.
Form, Exc	change and Transfer
prospectus securities o	sue the debt securities of each series only in fully registered form without coupons and, unless we otherwise specify in the applicable supplement, in denominations of \$1,000 and any integral multiple thereof. The indentures may provide that we may issue debt of a series in temporary or permanent global form and as book-entry securities that will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The Trust Company or another depositary named by us and identified in a prospectus supplement with respect to that series.
of the debt endorsed the agent design	the terms of the indentures and the limitations applicable to global securities set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, holders securities may present the debt securities for exchange or for registration of transfer, duly endorsed or with the form of transfer hereon duly executed if so required by us or the security registrar, at the office of the security registrar or at the office of any transfer gnated by us for this purpose. Unless otherwise provided in the debt securities that the holder presents for transfer or exchange, we no service charge for any registration of transfer or exchange, but we may require payment of any taxes or other governmental
	ame in the applicable prospectus supplement the security registrar, and any transfer agent in addition to the security registrar, that we signate for any debt securities.
Informatio	on Concerning the Debenture Trustee
those dutie	ture trustee, other than during the occurrence and continuance of an event of default under an indenture, undertakes to perform only is as are specifically set forth in the applicable indenture. Upon an event of default under an indenture, the debenture trustee must use egree of care as a prudent person would exercise or use in the conduct of his or her own affairs.

Table of Contents

Subject to this provision, the debenture trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers given it by the indentures at the request of any holder of debt securities unless it is offered reasonable security and indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities that it might incur.

Payment and Paying Agent

Unless we otherwise indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will make payment of the interest on any debt securities on any interest payment date to the person in whose name the debt securities, or one or more predecessor securities, are registered at the close of business on the regular record date for the interest.

We will pay principal of and any premium and interest on the debt securities of a particular series at the office of the paying agents designated by us, except that, unless we otherwise indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may make interest payments by check which we will mail to the holder or by wire transfer to certain holders. Unless we otherwise indicate in a prospectus supplement, we will designate an office or agency of the debenture trustee in the city of New York as our sole paying agent for payments with respect to debt securities of each series. We will name in the applicable prospectus supplement any other paying agents that we initially designate for the debt securities of a particular series. We will maintain a paying agent in each place of payment for the debt securities of a particular series.

Governing Law

Unless other indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the indentures and the debt securities will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, except to the extent that the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 is applicable.

Subordination of Subordinated Debt Securities

The subordinated debt securities will be subordinate and junior in priority of payment to certain of our other indebtedness to the extent described in a prospectus supplement. The indentures in the forms initially filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part do not limit the amount of indebtedness which we may incur, including senior indebtedness or subordinated indebtedness, and do not limit us from issuing any other debt, including secured debt or unsecured debt.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

The following description, together with the additional information we include in any applicable prospectus supplement, is only a summary of the material terms and provisions of the warrants that we may offer under this prospectus, which consist of warrants to purchase common stock, preferred stock, debt securities and/or depositary shares in one or more series. Warrants may be offered independently or together with common stock, preferred stock, debt securities and/or depositary shares offered by any prospectus supplement, and may be attached to or separate from

those securities. While the terms we have summarized below may generally apply to any future warrants we may offer under this prospectus, we will describe the particular terms of any warrants that we may offer in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement. The terms of any warrants we offer under a prospectus supplement may differ from the terms we describe below.

We will issue the warrants under a warrant agreement which we will enter into with a warrant agent to be selected by us. We will file forms of the warrant agreements and the related warrant certificates for each type of warrant we may offer under this prospectus with the SEC and such documents shall be incorporated into this registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part. We urge you to read the applicable prospectus supplements related to the warrants that we issue under this prospectus, as well as the complete warrant agreements and related warrant certificates that contain the terms of the warrants.

We use the term warrant agreement to refer to any of these warrant agreements. We use the term warrant agent to refer to the warrant agent under any of these warrant agreements. The warrant agent will act solely as an agent of ours in connection with the warrants and will not act as an agent for the holders or beneficial owners of the warrants.

General

As of March 31, 2012, we have no warrants issued and outstanding.

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms relating to a series of warrants. If warrants for the purchase of debt securities are offered, the prospectus supplement will describe the terms of such warrants, including, to the extent applicable:

Table of Contents

- the offering price and the aggregate number of warrants offered;
- the designation, aggregate principal amount, currencies, denominations and terms of the series of debt securities that can be purchased if a holder exercises a warrant;
- the designation and terms of any series of debt securities with which the warrants are being offered and the number of warrants offered with each such debt security;
- the date on and after which the holder of the warrants can transfer them separately from the related series of debt securities;
- the principal amount of the series of debt securities that can be purchased if a holder exercises a warrant and the price at which and currencies in which such principal amount may be purchased upon exercise;
- the terms of any rights to redeem or call the warrants;
- the date on which the right to exercise the warrants begins and the date on which such right expires;
- federal income tax consequences of holding or exercising the warrants; and
- any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of, or restrictions on, the warrants.

If warrants for the purchase of common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares are offered, the prospectus supplement will describe the terms of such warrants, including, to the extent applicable:

- the offering price and the aggregate number of warrants offered;
- the total number of shares that can be purchased if a holder of the warrants exercises them and, in the case of warrants for preferred stock or depositary shares, the designation, total number and terms of the series of preferred stock that can be purchased upon exercise or that are underlying the depositary shares that can be purchased upon exercise;
- the designation and terms of any series of preferred stock or depositary shares with which the warrants are being offered and the number of warrants being offered with each share of common stock, preferred stock or depositary share;
- the date on and after which the holder of the warrants can transfer them separately from the related common stock or series of preferred stock or depositary shares;
- the number of shares of common stock or preferred stock or depositary shares that can be purchased if a holder exercises the warrant and the price at which such common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares may be purchased upon exercise, including, if applicable, any provisions for changes to or adjustments in the exercise price and in the securities or other property receivable upon exercise;
- the date on which the right to exercise the warrants begins and the date on which that right expires;
- federal income tax consequences of holding or exercising the warrants; and

• any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of, or restrictions on, the warrants.

Until any warrants to purchase common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares are exercised, holders of the warrants will not have any rights of holders of the underlying common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares, including any rights to receive dividends or to exercise any voting rights, except to the extent set forth under Description of Warrants - Warrant Adjustments below.

Exercise of Warrants; Amendments; Supplements to the Warrant Agreements

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the manner in which a holder of warrants may exercise them and the manner in which we may amend or supplement a warrant agreement.

Warrant Adjustments

The applicable prospectus supplement will indicate the circumstances under which the exercise price of, and the number of securities covered by, a common stock warrant, preferred stock warrant or depositary share warrant may be adjusted proportionately if we subdivide or combine our common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares, as applicable.

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

The following is only a summary of the general terms and provisions of the depositary shares that we may offer. The specific terms of any depositary shares that we may offer will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We may offer fractional shares of preferred stock rather than full shares of preferred stock, and, in that event, will issue receipts for depositary shares. Each of these depositary shares will represent a fraction, which will be set forth in the applicable

Table of Contents

prospectus supplement, of a share of the applicable series of preferred stock. The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued under a deposit agreement. Depositary receipts will be distributed to the holders of the depositary shares that are sold in the applicable offering. We will file the complete deposit agreement, including a form of depositary receipt, with respect to any depositary shares we offer under this prospectus with the SEC and such documents shall be incorporated into this registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part. We urge you to read the applicable prospectus supplements related to the depositary shares that we issue under this prospectus, as well as the complete deposit agreement and the form of depositary receipt that contain the terms of the depositary shares.

Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, each holder of a depositary share will be entitled, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of the preferred stock underlying the depositary share, to all of the rights, preferences and privileges, and be subject to the qualifications and restrictions, of the preferred stock underlying that depositary share.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

General Plan of Distribution

We may sell the securities covered by this prospectus from time to time. Registration of the securities covered by this prospectus does not mean, however, that those securities will necessarily be offered or sold.

We may sell the securities separately or together:

- through one or more underwriters or dealers in a public offering and sale by them;
- directly to investors; or
- through agents.

We may sell the securities from time to time:

- in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed from time to time;
- at market prices prevailing at the times of sale;
- at prices related to such prevailing market prices; or

at negotiated prices.

We will describe the method of distribution of the securities and the terms of the offering in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Any public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time.

If underwriters are used in the sale of any securities, the securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions described above. The securities may be either offered to the public through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters, or directly by underwriters. Generally, the underwriters obligations to purchase the securities will be subject to conditions precedent and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the securities if they purchase any of the securities. We may use underwriters with whom we have a material relationship. We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement, naming the underwriter, the nature of any such relationship.

We may authorize underwriters, dealers or agents to solicit offers by certain purchasers to purchase the securities from us at the public offering price set forth in the prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on a specified date in the future. The contracts will be subject only to those conditions set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, and the prospectus supplement will set forth any commissions we pay for solicitation of these contracts.

We may enter into derivative transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in privately negotiated transactions. If the applicable prospectus supplement indicates, in connection with those derivatives, the third parties may sell securities covered by this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, including in short sale transactions (short sales of the securities covered by this prospectus may not be made prior to the effective date of the registration statement on Form S-3 of which this prospectus is a part as a sale is deemed to occur at the time such short sale is made). If so, the third party may use securities pledged by us or borrowed from us or others to settle those sales or to close out any related open borrowings of stock, and may use securities received from us in settlement of those derivatives to close out any related open borrowings of stock. The third party in such sale transactions will be an underwriter and will be identified in the applicable prospectus supplement or in a post-effective amendment.

Table of Contents

Underwriters, dealers and agents may be entitled to indemnification by us against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribution with respect to payments made by the underwriters, dealers or agents, under agreements between us and the underwriters, dealers and agents.

We may grant underwriters who participate in the distribution of securities an option to purchase additional securities to cover over-allotments, if any, in connection with the distribution.

Underwriters, dealers or agents may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from us or our purchasers, as their agents in connection with the sale of securities. These underwriters, dealers or agents may be considered to be underwriters under the Securities Act. As a result, discounts, commissions or profits on resale received by the underwriters, dealers or agents may be treated as underwriting discounts and commissions. The prospectus supplement will identify any such underwriter, dealer or agent and describe any compensation received by them from us. Any initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time.

Unless otherwise specified in the related prospectus supplement, all securities we offer, other than common stock, will be new issues of securities with no established trading market. Any underwriters may make a market in these securities, but will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. Any common stock sold pursuant to a prospectus supplement will be included in the Nasdaq Global Market. We may apply to list any series of debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or warrants on an exchange, but we are not obligated to do so. Therefore, there may not be liquidity or a trading market for any series of securities.

Any underwriter may engage in overallotment transactions, stabilizing transactions, short-covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with Regulation M under the Exchange Act. Overallotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which create a short position. Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. Short covering transactions involve purchases of the securities in the open market after the distribution is completed to cover short positions. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a dealer when the securities originally sold by the dealer are purchased in a covering transaction to cover short positions. Those activities may cause the price of the securities to be higher than it would otherwise be. If commenced, the underwriters may discontinue any of the activities at any time. We make no representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that such transactions may have on the price of the securities. For a description of these activities, see the information under the heading. Underwriting in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Underwriters, broker-dealers or agents who may become involved in the sale of the common stock may engage in transactions with and perform other services for us in the ordinary course of their business for which they receive compensation.

To the extent required, this prospectus may be amended and supplemented from time to time to describe a specific plan of distribution.

LEGAL MATTERS

The legality of the issuance of the securities being offered hereby is being passed upon by Baker Botts L.L.P., Palo Alto, California.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our financial statements and schedule included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements and schedule are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s reports, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports, proxy statements and other information we file at the SEC s public reference room at 100 F St., N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. You may also access filed documents at the SEC s website at www.sec.gov. Our website address is www.depomed.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated into, and does not constitute a part of this prospectus or any prospectus supplements.

Table of Contents

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

We are incorporating by reference some information about us that we file with the SEC. We are disclosing important information to you by
referencing those filed documents. Any information that we reference this way is considered part of this prospectus. The information in this
prospectus supersedes information incorporated by reference that we have filed with the SEC prior to the date of this prospectus, while
information that we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus that is incorporated by reference will automatically update and supersede
this information.

We incorporate by reference the following documents we have filed, or may file, with the SEC:

- our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (including the portions of our Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 10, 2012 that are incorporated by reference therein);
- our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2012;
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K (other than information furnished under Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K and all exhibits related to such items) filed on May 18, 2012, May 8, 2012, April 25, 2012, April 18, 2012, April 11, 2012, April 5, 2012, April 3, 2012, March 30, 2012, March 8, 2012, March 5, 2012, February 23, 2012, February 17, 2012, January 23, 2012, January 17, 2012 and January 9, 2012;
- the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on December 16, 2003, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description; and
- all documents filed by us with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and before termination of this offering.

You may request a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus by writing to the following address: Depomed, Inc., Attention: August J. Moretti, Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President, 1360 O Brien Drive, Menlo Park, California 94025 or telephoning us at (650) 462-5900.

Table of Contents

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following table sets forth various expenses in connection with the sale and distribution of the securities being registered. All of the amounts shown are estimates except for the SEC Registration Fee.

SEC Registration Fee	\$
Nasdaq Global Market Listing Fee	65,000
Accounting Fees and Expenses	20,000
Legal Fees and Expenses	30,000
Printing and Engraving Fees	50,000
Miscellaneous	14,000
Total	\$ 180,000

Item 15. Indemnification of Officers and Directors.

Pursuant to Section 204(a) and 317 of the California Corporations Code, as amended, the registrant has included in its amended and restated articles of incorporation and its bylaws, as amended, provisions regarding the indemnification of officers and directors of the registrant. Article IV of registrant s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation provides as follows:

The liability of the directors of this corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under California law. This corporation is also authorized, to the fullest extent permissible under California law, to indemnify its agents (as defined in Section 317 of the California Corporations Code), whether by bylaw, agreement or otherwise, for breach of duty to this corporation and its shareholders in excess of the indemnification expressly permitted by Section 317 and to advance defense expenses to its agents in connection with such matters as they are incurred, subject to the limits on such excess indemnification set forth in Section 204 of the California Corporations Code. If, after the effective date of this Article, California law is amended in a manner which permits a corporation to limit the monetary or other liability of its directors or to authorize indemnification of, or advancement of such defense expense to, its directors or other persons, in any such case to a greater extent than is permitted on such effective date, the references in this Article to California law shall to that extent be deemed to refer to California law as so amended.

Section 31 of the registrant s bylaws, as amended, provides as follows:

31. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

(a) Indemnification. To the fullest extent permissible under California law, the corporation shall indemnify its directors and officers against all expenses, judgment, fines, settlement and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any proceeding, including an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation, or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise (including service with respect to employee benefit plans). To the fullest extent permissible under California law, expenses incurred by a director or officer seeking indemnification under this bylaw in defending any proceeding shall be advanced by the corporation as they are incurred upon receipt by the corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director or officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that the director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation for those expenses. If, after the effective date of this bylaw, California law is amended in a manner which permits the corporation to authorize indemnification of or advancement of expenses to its directors or officers, in any such case to a greater extent than is permitted on such effective date, the references in this bylaw to California law shall to that extent be deemed to refer to California law as so amended. The rights granted by this bylaw are contractual in nature and, as such, may not be altered with respect to any present or former director or officer without the written consent of that person.

(b) Procedure. Upon written request to the Board of Directors by a person seeking indemnification under this bylaw, the Board shall promptly determine in accordance with Section 317(e) of the California Corporations Code whether the applicable standard of conduct has been met and, if so, the Board shall authorize indemnification. If the Board cannot authorize indemnification because the number of directors who are parties to the proceeding with respect to which indemnification is sought prevents the formation of a quorum of directors who are not parties to the proceeding, then, upon

II-1

Table of Contents

written request by the person seeking indemnification, independent legal counsel (by means of a written opinion obtained at the corporation s expense) or the corporation s shareholders shall determine whether the applicable standard of conduct has been met and, if so, shall authorize indemnification.

(c) Definitions. The term proceeding means any threatened, pending or completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative. The term expenses includes, without limitation, attorney s fees and any expenses of establishing a right to indemnification. The registrant has entered into indemnification agreements with each of its current directors and officers pursuant to the foregoing provisions.

Item 16. Exhibits.

23.2*

The following documents are filed herewith (unless otherwise indicated) and made a part of this registration statement.

Exhibit Number	Description of Exhibit
1.1**	Form of Underwriting Agreement.
3.1(1)	Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation.
3.2(3)	Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation.
3.3(2)	Certificate of Determination of Rights and Preferences of Series A Preferred Stock filed with the State of California on January 14, 2000.
3.4(4)	Bylaws, as amended.
3.5(6)	Certificate of Determination for Series RP Preferred Stock filed with the State of California on April 21, 2005.
4.1(1)	Specimen Common Stock Certificate.
4.2(5)	Rights Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2005, between Depomed, Inc. and Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company as Rights Agent, which includes: as Exhibit A thereto, the Form of Certificate of Determination, Preferences and Rights of Series RP Preferred Stock of Depomed, Inc.; as Exhibit B thereto, the Form of Right Certificate; and, as Exhibit C thereto, the Summary of Rights to Purchase Series RP Preferred Shares.
4.3*	Form of Senior Indenture.
4.4*	Form of Subordinated Indenture.
4.5**	Form of Senior Debt Security.
4.6**	Form of Subordinated Debt Security.
4.7**	Form of Preferred Stock Certificate.
4.8**	Form of Certificate of Designations.
4.9**	Form of Deposit Agreement.
4.10**	Form of Depositary Receipt.
4.11**	Form of Common Stock Warrant Agreement.
4.12**	Form of Common Stock Warrant Certificate.
4.13**	Form of Preferred Stock Warrant Agreement.
4.14**	Form of Preferred Stock Warrant Certificate.
4.15**	Form of Depositary Shares Warrant Agreement.
4.16**	Form of Depositary Shares Warrant Certificate.
4.17**	Form of Debt Securities Warrant Agreement.
4.18**	Form of Debt Securities Warrant Certificate.
5.1*	Opinion of Baker Botts L.L.P.
12.1*	Statement Regarding Computation of Ratios
23.1*	Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Opinion of Baker Botts L.L.P. (included in Exhibit 5.1).

24.1*	Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto).
25.1**	Statement of Eligibility of Trustee on Form T-1 under the Senior Indenture.
25.2**	Statement of Eligibility of Trustee on Form T-1 under the Subordinated Indenture.

- (1) Incorporated by reference to our registration statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-25445).
- (2) Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on February 18, 2000.
- (3) Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2003.
- (4) Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2005.
- (5) Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2005.
- (6) Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2005.

II-2

Table of Contents

- (7) Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2006.
- (8) Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-Q filed on August 8, 2008.
- * Filed herewith.
- ** To be filed by amendment or as an exhibit to a report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and incorporated herein by reference.

ntem 17. Undertakings	Item	17.	Undertakings
-----------------------	------	-----	--------------

(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes: (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement: (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933; (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement; and To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that the undertakings set forth in paragraphs (1)(i), (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) above do not apply if the registration statement is on Form S-3 or Form F-3 and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is a part of the registration statement.

provided, further, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i) and (a)(1)(ii) do not apply if the registration statement is for an offering of asset-backed securities on Form S-1 or Form S-3, and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment is provided pursuant to Item 1100(c) of Regulation AB (§229.1100(c)).

	That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall he initial <i>bona fide</i> offering thereof.
(3) unsold at the term	To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain ination of the offering.
(4)	That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
(i)	If the registrant is relying on Rule 430B:
(A) as of the date the	Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424 (b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
required by Section the date such form	Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424 (b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information on 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of a of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in seprovided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an
	II-3

Table of Contents

underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract or sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; or

(ii) If the registrant is subject to Rule 430C, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used after effectiveness. <i>Provided, however</i> , that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;
(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and
(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

a time

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers, and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer, or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer, or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:
(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.
(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial <i>bona fide</i> offering thereof.
The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection (a) of section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission under Section 305(b)(2) of the Act.
II-4

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in Menlo Park, California, on May 25, 2012.

DEPOMED, INC.

By: /s/ James A. Schoeneck

James A. Schoeneck

President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints, James A. Schoeneck and August J. Moretti, and each of them, as his attorney-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Registration Statement (including post-effective amendments), and any and all Registration Statements filed pursuant to Rule 462 under the Securities Act of 1933, in connection with or related to the Offering contemplated by this Registration Statement and its amendments, if any, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed by our said attorney to any and all amendments to said Registration Statement.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ James A. Schoeneck James A. Schoeneck	President and Chief Executive Officer (<i>Principal Executive Officer</i>)	May 25, 2012
/s/ August J. Moretti August J. Moretti	Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	May 25, 2012
/s/ Peter D. Staple Peter D. Staple	Chairman of the Board of Directors	May 25, 2012
/s/ G. Steven Burrill G. Steven Burrill	Director	May 25, 2012
/s/ Karen A. Dawes Karen A. Dawes	Director	May 25, 2012
/s/ Craig R. Smith, M.D. Craig R. Smith, M.D.	Director	May 25, 2012
/s/ Julian N. Stern Julian N. Stern	Director	May 25, 2012

/s/ David B. Zenoff, D.B.A. David B. Zenoff, D.B.A. Director May 25, 2012

II-5

Table of Contents

DEPOMED, INC.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number	Description of Exhibit
1.1**	Form of Underwriting Agreement.
3.1(1)	Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation.
3.2(3)	Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation.
3.3(2)	Certificate of Determination of Rights and Preferences of Series A Preferred Stock filed with the State of California on January 14, 2000.
3.4(4)	Bylaws, as amended.
3.5(6)	Certificate of Determination for Series RP Preferred Stock filed with the State of California on April 21, 2005.
4.1(1)	Specimen Common Stock Certificate.
4.2(5)	Rights Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2005, between Depomed, Inc. and Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company as Rights Agent, which includes: as Exhibit A thereto, the Form of Certificate of Determination, Preferences and Rights of Series RP Preferred Stock of Depomed, Inc.; as Exhibit B thereto, the Form of Right Certificate; and, as Exhibit C thereto, the Summary of Rights to Purchase Series RP Preferred Shares.
4.3*	Form of Senior Indenture.
4.4*	Form of Subordinated Indenture.
4.5**	Form of Senior Debt Security.
4.6**	Form of Subordinated Debt Security.
4.7**	Form of Preferred Stock Certificate.
4.8**	Form of Certificate of Designations.
4.9**	Form of Deposit Agreement.
4.10**	Form of Depositary Receipt.
4.11**	Form of Common Stock Warrant Agreement.
4.12**	Form of Common Stock Warrant Certificate.
4.13**	Form of Preferred Stock Warrant Agreement.
4.14**	Form of Preferred Stock Warrant Certificate.
4.15**	Form of Depositary Shares Warrant Agreement.
4.16**	Form of Depositary Shares Warrant Certificate.
4.17**	Form of Debt Securities Warrant Agreement.
4.18**	Form of Debt Securities Warrant Certificate.
5.1*	Opinion of Baker Botts L.L.P.
12.1*	Statement Regarding Computation of Ratios
23.1*	Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
23.2*	Opinion of Baker Botts L.L.P. (included in Exhibit 5.1).
24.1*	Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto).
25.1**	Statement of Eligibility of Trustee on Form T-1 under the Senior Indenture.
25.2**	Statement of Eligibility of Trustee on Form T-1 under the Subordinated Indenture.

⁽¹⁾ Incorporated by reference to our registration statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-25445).

⁽²⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on February 18, 2000.

⁽³⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2003.

⁽⁴⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2005.

⁽⁵⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2005.

⁽⁶⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2005.

⁽⁷⁾ Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2006.

- (8) Incorporated by reference to our Form 10-Q filed on August 8, 2008.
- * Filed herewith.
- ** To be filed by amendment or as an exhibit to a report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and incorporated herein by reference.